

## JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

## Fifty-fourth Legislative Assembly

\* \* \* \* \*

Bismarck, February 13, 1995

The House convened at 8:30 a.m., with Speaker Martin presiding.

The prayer was offered by Phil Leyer, Administrator of Liberty House, Mandan.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Bateman and Gorman.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

## SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

The amendments on the Sixth order of business to HB 1022, HB 1151, HB 1218, and HCR 3023 were adopted.

HB 1022, HB 1151, HB 1218, and HCR 3023, as amended, were placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1260:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 15-05-10 and 38-09-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to modification of oil and gas leases for public lands.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 74 YEAS, 22 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleon; Hanson; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Oban; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Sitz; Wilkie

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bateman; Gorman

Engrossed HB 1260 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1494:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact three new sections to chapter 15-38 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to sex education in the public schools.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been

read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 36 YEAS, 60 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Belter; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Carlson; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Freier; Galvin; Gorder; Grosz; Howard; Jacobs; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Laughlin; Mahoney; Olson; Payne; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Shide; Soukup; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Wald; Wardner; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Berg; Boucher; Byerly; Carlisle; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; Delmore; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Froseth; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Huether; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Klein; Kroeber; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Poolman; Price; Rydell; Schimke; Sitz; Skarphol; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thoreson; Torgerson; Walker; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bateman; Gorman

Engrossed HB 1494 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1089:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 28-32 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to duties of hearing officers; to amend and reenact sections 54-57-02, 54-57-03, 54-57-04, subsection 1 of section 54-57-05, and section 54-57-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to duties of administrative hearing officers; and to repeal section 54-57-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to transfer and transition provisions for the office of administrative hearings.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 96 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Sveen; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bateman; Gorman

Engrossed HB 1089 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1178:** A BILL for an Act relating to the expulsion of a student for possessing a firearm on school property; and to amend and reenact subsection 13 of section 15-29-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the suspension or expulsion of a student from school.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 54 YEAS, 43 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Belter; Boucher; Byerly; Carlisle; Christenson; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; Delmore; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hanson; Henegar, D.; Henegar, K.; Holm; Huether; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Price; Rennerfeldt; Rydell; Sabby; Schmidt; Sitz; Skarphol; Svedjan; Sveen; Torgerson; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Bateman; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; DeKrey; Delzer; Dewitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Freier; Gorder; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Howard; Jacobs; Kelsch; Kempenich; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Lloyd; Mickelson; Nichols; Payne; Poolman; Retzer; Sandvig; Schimke; Shide; Soukup; Stenehjem; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Wald; Walker; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Gorman

Engrossed HB 1178 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (ROY GILBREATH, CHIEF CLERK)

**MADAM PRESIDENT:** The House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1064, HB 1172, HB 1210, HB 1246, HB 1274, HB 1317, HB 1324, HB 1364, HB 1368, HB 1371, HB 1374, HB 1376, HB 1377, HB 1383, HB 1384, HB 1393, HB 1394, HB 1395, HB 1396, HB 1397, HB 1412, HB 1419, HB 1452, HB 1469.

## POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

**REP. STENEHJEM:** Mr. Speaker: I rise on a point of personal privilege and request that my remarks be printed in the Journal, which request was granted.

## REMARKS OF REPRESENTATIVE STENEHJEM

Since 1981 the North Dakota Jaycees, at their Annual Awards Banquet, select five emerging leaders to receive their "Outstanding Young North Dakotan" award.

Nominations for this prestigious award are submitted by individuals, associations, companies, governmental units, and civic organizations from around the state.

To be nominated for this special award is evidence of an outstanding individual. It means that each nominee has worked within their community and has "gone the extra mile" to make it a better place in which to work and live. The individual strives to believe, achieve and succeed so consistently that someone else in the community has noticed.

Two of the five individuals selected to receive the North Dakota Jaycees' "Outstanding Young North Dakotan" award this year are members of this Legislative Assembly.

Mr. Speaker and Members of the Assembly: In recognition of their contributions to their communities, this special award was presented last Saturday to Representative Rick Berg and Representative Rae Ann Kelsch.

## MOTION

**REP. DORSO MOVED** that the House stand in recess until 3:00 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Martin presiding.

#### HOUSE ENGROSSING REPORT

The following bills were engrossed: HB 1022, HB 1151, HB 1218, HCR 3023.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1406:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 38-11.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to notice requirements for oil and gas drilling operations.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 36 YEAS, 58 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Brown; Christenson; Delmore; Delzer; Dobrinski; Drovdal; Galvin; Glassheim; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Huether; Kaldor; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Laughlin; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Retzer; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Sitz; Thompson; Tollefson; Walker; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; DeWitz; Dorso; Freier; Froseth; Gerntholz; Gorman; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Rydell; Sabby; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjelm; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Torgerson; Wardner; Wentz

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Gorder; Henegar, D.; Sveen; Wald

Engrossed HB 1406 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### MOTION

**REP. WARDNER MOVED** that HB 1255 be returned to the House floor from the Government and Veterans Affairs Committee for the purpose of withdrawal, which motion prevailed.

#### REQUEST

**REP. AUSTIN REQUESTED** the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1255. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1424:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 19 of section 53-06.1-01, subsection 1 of section 53-06.1-07, and section 53-06.1-10.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions, allowed games of chance, and prizes for raffles.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 25 YEAS, 71 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Berg; Bernstein; Carlson; Clark; Dorso; Galvin; Gorman; Gunter; Henegar, K.; Kempenich; Kretschmar; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Nottestad; Payne; Schmidt; Soukup; Thoreson; Timm; Wald; Walker; Wentz

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Bateman; Belter; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Christenson; Christopherson; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Hagle; Hanson;

Hausauer; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Keisch; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Mahoney; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Oban; Olson; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Stenehjelm; Svedjan; Thompson; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wardner; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Henegar, D.; Sveen

Engrossed HB 1424 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

REQUEST

REP. GULLESON REQUESTED that Engrossed HB 1491 be divided to have the divisions voted on separately in the following manner and that a roll call vote be taken on each division.

Engrossed HB 1491 A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 16.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to campaign contributions; to amend and reenact sections 16.1-08-01 and 16.1-08.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions and campaign contribution statements; and to provide a penalty.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

DIVISION A

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08-01 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise plainly requires:

1. "Association" means any club, association, union, brotherhood, fraternity, organization, or group of any kind of two or more persons, including, ~~but not limited to,~~ labor unions, trade associations, professional associations, or governmental associations, which is united for any purpose, business, or object and which assesses any dues, membership fees, or license fees in any amount, or which maintains a treasury fund in any amount. ~~Association~~ The term does not include corporations, cooperative corporations, limited liability companies, political committees, or political parties.
2. "Candidate" means a person whose name is presented for nomination to public office at any primary election or convention, whether the person is actually nominated or not; a person whose name is printed as a candidate on an official ballot used at any election; or a person who seeks election through write-in votes.
3. "Charitable organization" means any nonprofit organization that is operated for the relief of poverty, distress, or other condition of public concern within this state and which has been so engaged within this state for two years.
4. "Contribution" means a gift of money or property, subscription, loan, advance, or deposit of money, except a loan of money from a bank or other lending institution made in the regular course of business, made for the purpose of influencing the nomination for election, or election, of any person to office. Contribution also means a contract, promise, or agreement, express or implied, whether or not legally enforceable, to make a contribution for any of the above purposes, and includes funds received by a political

committee which are transferred to that committee from another political committee or other source.

- 4- 5. "Cooperative corporations", "corporations" and "limited liability companies" are as defined in ~~the North Dakota Century Code~~ this code.
- 5- 6. "Expenditure" means a purchase, payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit, or gift of money or property, except a loan of money from a bank or other lending institution made in the regular course of business, made for the purpose of influencing the nomination for election, or election, of any person to office. ~~Expenditure~~ The term also means a contract, promise, or agreement, express or implied, whether or not legally enforceable, to make any expenditure and includes the transfer of funds by a political committee to another political committee.
- 6- 7. "Patron" means a person who owns equity interest in the form of stock, shares, or membership, or maintains similar financial rights in a cooperative corporation.
- 7- 8. "Person" means an individual, partnership, committee, association, corporation, cooperative corporation, limited liability company, or other organization or group of persons.
- 8- 9. "Political committee" means any committee, club, association, or other group of persons which receives contributions or makes expenditures for political purposes.
- 9- 10. "Political party" means any association, committee, or organization which nominates a candidate for election to any office which may be filled by a vote of the electors of this state or any of its political subdivisions or legislative districts and whose name appears on the election ballot as the candidate of such association, committee, or organization.
- 10- 11. "Political purpose" or "political purposes" means any activity undertaken in support of or in opposition to the election or nomination of a candidate whether the activity is undertaken by a candidate, a political committee, a political party, or any person.

**SECTION 3.** A new section to chapter 16.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Campaign contributions - Use of unexpended contributions.

A candidate may use a contribution only for a political purpose, except a person who ceases to be a candidate may return unexpended contributions to each contributor on a prorated basis or use unexpended contributions as a contribution to any political party or as a donation to any charitable organization.

**DIVISION B**

**SECTION 2.** A new section to chapter 16.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Campaign contributions to candidates for the legislative assembly - Limits - Penalty. An individual, a political party, or a political committee may not make any campaign contribution exceeding two hundred fifty dollars in the aggregate to a candidate for the legislative assembly. A person who willfully takes a contribution in violation of this section is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.

## DIVISION C

**SECTION 4. AMENDMENT.** Section 16.1-08.1-02 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**16.1-08.1-02. Statement required of candidates - Contents - Additional statements.** Any candidate for a public office or any candidate who sought a public office or is seeking a public office and who is soliciting or accepting contributions for any political purpose, shall make and file a statement in accordance with this section. The candidate shall include in the statement ~~must contain~~ a detailed statement list of all contributions received from each individual or political committee which exceed one hundred dollars. A candidate for the legislative assembly shall include in the statement a detailed list of all contributions received from political committees.

The statement must include the name and mailing address of all contributors listed. In determining the amount of individual contributions from any contributor, all amounts received from the same contributor during the reporting period must be aggregated for the purposes of the statements required by this chapter.

~~The statement required of a candidate must be filed~~ shall file the statement with the secretary of state no later than five p.m. on the twelfth day ~~prior to before~~ the date of the election in which the candidate's name appears on the ballot or in which the candidate seeks election through write-in votes complete from the beginning of that calendar year through the twentieth day ~~prior to before~~ the date of the election. ~~A The candidate shall file a complete statement for the entire calendar year must be filed no later than five p.m. on the thirty-first day of January of the following year, regardless of whether the candidate's name appeared on the ballot for any office during that calendar year or whether the candidate did not seek election at any election through write-in votes. If the filing date falls on a Saturday or Sunday or a holiday on which the office of the secretary of state is closed, the candidate shall file the report must be filed no later than five p.m. on the next business day on which the office of the secretary of state is open.~~

The form of all statements required by this chapter must be as prescribed by the secretary of state. ~~Statements of a~~ A legislative candidate must be filed shall file the statement in the office of the county auditor of the candidate's county of residence under the same limitations as apply to the filing of statements with the secretary of state. Statements of state office candidates and any other required statements must be filed in the office of the secretary of state.

~~No~~ Except as otherwise provided by this section, a candidate may not be required to file any statement required by this chapter if the candidate has not received any contributions in excess of one hundred dollars during the calendar year.

Correct title and renumber accordingly

## RULING BY SPEAKER

**SPEAKER MARTIN RULED** that in accordance with House Rule 319, any member may have the question divided. Each division of a divided question requires the same vote for adoption that the division would require if it stood alone, and after voting on all divisions, the approved divisions comprise the question before the House, therefore Rep. Oban's request was granted.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt Division A of Engrossed HB 1491, the roll was called and there were 26 YEAS, 68 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Berg; Boucher; Byerly; Carlson; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dobrinski; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hanson; Huether; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Carlisle; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Freier; Henegar, D.; Rydell; Sveen

The motion to adopt Division A of Engrossed HB 1491 failed.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt Division B of Engrossed HB 1491, the roll was called and there were 24 YEAS, 72 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dobrinski; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hanson; Holm; Huether; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

The motion to adopt Division B of Engrossed HB 1491 failed.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt Division C of Engrossed HB 1491, the roll was called and there were 24 YEAS, 71 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dobrinski; Galvin; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hanson; Kaldor; Kerzman; Koppelman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Freier; Froseth; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan;

Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Drovdal; Henegar, D.; Sveen

The motion to adopt Division C of Engrossed HB 1491 failed.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1491:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 16.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to campaign contributions; to amend and reenact sections 16.1-08-01 and 16.1-08.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions and campaign contribution statements; and to provide a penalty.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 24 YEAS, 71 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dobrinski; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hanson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Rydell; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Drovdal; Henegar, D.; Sveen

Engrossed HB 1491 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1493:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 24-02-03.3 and 24-02-03.4 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the central management system for state-owned motor vehicles and the transfer of titles.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 64 YEAS, 32 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Monson; Nicholas; Oban; Olson; Payne; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Schimke; Schmidt; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Christenson; Clark; Clayburgh; Delmore; Dobrinski; Froseth; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleson; Hanson; Henegar, K.; Huether; Kaldor; Keiser; Kliniske; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Mutzenberger;

Nichols; Nottestad; Poolman; Price; Rydell; Sandvig; Shide; Sitz; Svedjan; Tollefson; Wentz

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

Engrossed HB 1493 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1485:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 57-39.2-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to administrative expense allowances for retailers under the sales and use tax laws; and to repeal sections 57-39.2-12.1 and 57-40.2-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to administrative expense allowances for retailers under the sales and use tax laws.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 28 YEAS, 68 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dobrinski; Drovdal; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleon; Hagle; Hanson; Huether; Jacobs; Kaldor; Kerzman; Koppelman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mahoney; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Schmidt; Sitz; Wentz; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1485 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1495:** A BILL for an Act to repeal subsection 12 of section 57-39.2-04 and section 57-39.2-28 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to sales tax refunds for residents of Canada and exemptions for residents of adjoining states that do not impose sales taxes; and to provide an effective date.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 24 YEAS, 72 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Bateman; Boucher; Dalrymple; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Gorder; Grumbo; Gulleon; Hanson; Huether; Kaldor; Keiser; Kerzman; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Laughlin; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Rydell; Sitz; Thoreson

**NAYS:** Austin; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Kroeber;

Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1495 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1249:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 37-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to tuition reimbursement payments; to amend and reenact sections 37-07.1-03 and 37-07.2-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to tuition waivers and grants; and to repeal section 37-07.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to tuition payments.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 86 YEAS, 10 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Berg; Boucher; Dobrinski; Gulleeson; Kaldor; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Schimke; Wilkie

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1249 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1362:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 40-13-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to salaries of city officers.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols;

Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjøm; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Kerzman; Sveen

HB 1362 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1373:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 49-02-01.1 and 49-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers of the public service commission concerning public utilities and the sale of materials or services to a public utility by an affiliated company.

#### MOTION

**REP. WALD MOVED** the previous question, which motion prevailed.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 77 YEAS, 19 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjøm; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Dobrinski; Glassheim; Gorder; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Hanson; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mutzenberger; Oban; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz; Wilkie

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1373 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1385:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 4, 16, and 33 of section 54-03-01.9 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to legislative redistricting.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleeson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson;

Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Dobrinski; Huether; Nichols

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Soukup; Sveen

HB 1385 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1400:** A BILL for an Act relating to the sale of the state mill and elevator; to amend and reenact sections 1-02-35, 10-30-14, subsection 1 of section 28-32-01, sections 48-02-01, 48-03-03, 54-16-10, 54-44.3-20, and subsection 3 of section 54-52.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to effective dates and the state mill and elevator; to repeal chapter 54-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state mill and elevator; and to provide an effective date.

#### MOTION

**REP. PAYNE MOVED** the previous question, which motion prevailed.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 18 YEAS, 78 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Brown; Carlisle; Carlson; Clark; Gorman; Henegar, K.; Keiser; Kempenich; Koppelman; Martinson; Payne; Soukup; Timm; Tollefson; Wald; Walker; Wardner

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Byerly; Christenson; Christopherson; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gordner; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleston; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Torgerson; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1400 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1423:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 54-23.3-03, 54-44.1-02, 54-44.2-01, 54-44.3-11, and 54-44.5-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the appointment of the director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation, the executive budget analyst, the director of the information services division, the director of the central personnel division, and the director of the office of intergovernmental assistance.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and

has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 72 YEAS, 23 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Sabby; Schimke; Shide; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Delmore; Dobrinski; Glassheim; Grumbo; Gulleon; Hanson; Huether; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Martinson; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Oban; Rydell; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitz

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen; Wilkie

HB 1423 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1455:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-03 and two new sections to chapter 54-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to restrictions on lobbying activities by members of the legislative assembly and regulation of lobbyists; to amend and reenact sections 54-05.1-02, 54-05.1-03, and 54-05.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the the definition of a lobbyist and regulation of lobbyists; and to provide a penalty.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 17 YEAS, 79 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Boucher; Christenson; Coats; Dobrinski; Grumbo; Gulleon; Hanson; Huether; Kaldor; Kerzman; Kroeber; Laughlin; Mutzenberger; Oban; Schmidt; Wilkie

**NAYS:** Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Gunter; Hagle; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kunkel; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1455 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1459:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 49-02-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to jurisdiction of the public service commission.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 78 YEAS, 18 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Aarsvold; Austin; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Carlisle; Carlson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Gorman; Grosz; Gulleon; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Martinson; Mickelson; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Retzer; Rydell; Schimke; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Tollefson; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**NAYS:** Bateman; Byerly; Christenson; Dalrymple; Drovdal; Glassheim; Gorder; Grumbo; Jacobs; Klein; Maragos; Monson; Mutzenberger; Oban; Rennerfeldt; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Henegar, D.; Sveen

HB 1459 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1464:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 57-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a township levy for support of a city job development authority; to amend and reenact section 11-11.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to township participation in job development authorities; and to provide an effective date.

## ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 33 YEAS, 61 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Belter; Coats; DeKrey; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Froseth; Galvin; Gorman; Grosz; Hagle; Hanson; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Koppelman; Kunkel; Laughlin; Mahoney; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Oban; Retzer; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Thoreson; Walker

**NAYS:** Aarsvold; Bateman; Berg; Bernstein; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Dalrymple; Delmore; Dorso; Drovdal; Freier; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Grumbo; Gulleon; Gunter; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Kaldor; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Lloyd; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nottestad; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Rydell; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Timm; Torgerson; Wald; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Austin; Henegar, D.; Sveen; Tollefson

HB 1464 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1471:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 2 of

section 54-27-20.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allocation of state revenue sharing funds.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS, the roll was called and there were 13 YEAS, 80 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Bateman; Boehm; Boucher; DeKrey; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Gulleson; Kaldor; Kerzman; Mutzenberger; Nichols; Schimke

NAYS: Austin; Belter; Berg; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; Delmore; Delzer; Dorso; Drovda; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Keiser; Kempenich; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Nicholas; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Bernstein; Henegar, D.; Kelsch; Sveen; Tollefson

HB 1471 was declared lost.

\*\*\*\*\*

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1478: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 37-19.1-01 and subsection 1 of section 37-19.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of veterans for the purpose of veterans' preferences and public employment preference to veterans.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 94 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Austin; Bateman; Belter; Berg; Boehm; Boucher; Brown; Byerly; Carlisle; Carlson; Christenson; Christopherson; Clark; Clayburgh; Coats; Dalrymple; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; DeWitz; Dobrinski; Dorso; Drovda; Freier; Froseth; Galvin; Gerntholz; Glassheim; Gorder; Gorman; Grosz; Grumbo; Gulleson; Gunter; Hagle; Hanson; Hausauer; Henegar, K.; Holm; Howard; Huether; Jacobs; Johnson; Kaldor; Keiser; Kelsch; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klein; Kliniske; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Kunkel; Laughlin; Lloyd; Mahoney; Maragos; Martinson; Mickelson; Monson; Mutzenberger; Nicholas; Nichols; Nottestad; Oban; Olson; Payne; Poolman; Price; Rennerfeldt; Retzer; Rydell; Sabby; Sandvig; Schimke; Schmidt; Shide; Sitz; Skarphol; Soukup; Stenehjem; Svedjan; Thompson; Thoreson; Timm; Torgerson; Wald; Walker; Wardner; Wentz; Wilkie; Speaker Martin

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Bernstein; Henegar, D.; Sveen; Tollefson

HB 1478 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

MOTION

REP. FREIER MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. FREIER MOVED that the House be on the Fifth, Twelfth, and Thirteenth

orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 14, 1995, which motion prevailed.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1029: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman)** recommends **DO NOT PASS** (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1029 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1076: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman)** recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO NOT PASS** (14 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1076 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, replace "telephone expense reimbursement for" with "compensation of"

Page 2, replace lines 23 through 28 with:

"In addition, a member is entitled to receive during the term for which the member was elected, as additional compensation, fifteen dollars per month if the member's district covers at least one thousand six hundred square miles [414398.01 hectares] but not more than three thousand square miles [776996.43 hectares], thirty-five dollars per month if the member's district covers more than three thousand square miles [776996.43 hectares] but not more than five thousand square miles [1294994.06 hectares], and fifty dollars per month if the member's district covers more than five thousand square miles [1294994.06 hectares]."

Page 3, remove lines 1 and 2

Re-number accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1090: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman)** recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1090 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 5, remove "subsection 2 of section 47-30.1-04,"

Page 1, line 6, replace "subsections 1 and" with "subsection"

Page 1, line 7, replace "sections" with "section" and remove "47-30.1-11,"

Page 2, remove lines 12 through 21

Page 3, line 6, replace "Subsections 1 and" with "Subsection"

Page 3, line 7, replace "are" with "is"

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 29

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 15

Page 7, remove lines 27 and 28

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 5

Re-number accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1094, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman)**

recommends DO PASS (23 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1094 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1131: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1131 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.**

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to provide an effective date;"

Page 1, line 11, overstrike "twenty-five" and insert immediately thereafter "thirty"

Page 1, line 14, overstrike "When"

Page 1, line 15, overstrike "a fine", remove "or administrative fee or costs is", and overstrike "imposed"

Page 1, line 17, overstrike ", the", remove "district", and overstrike "court"

Page 1, line 18, remove "shall tax, in addition to any other court administration fee or"

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 22

Page 2, overstrike lines 1 and 2

Page 2, line 3, overstrike "Constitution of North Dakota" and insert immediately thereafter "District court cost, administration fees, and forfeitures must be deposited as follows: eighty percent in the state general fund and twenty percent in the general fund of the county in which the matter arose"

Page 2, line 4, remove "assessment fee."

Page 3, after line 5, insert:

"SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 1995."

Re-number accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1203: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1203 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.**

Page 1, line 1, replace "sections 46-04-04 and" with "section"

Page 1, remove lines 5 through 13

Page 1, line 18, overstrike "The" and insert immediately thereafter "Upon the election of a member of the legislative assembly, the secretary of state shall request of that member whether that member wants to receive a set of the code under this section. The secretary of state shall deliver a set of the code to each member who elects to receive a copy of the code. A"

Page 1, line 19, after "legislator" insert "who elects to receive a set of the code"

Page 1, line 21, remove the overstrike over "not"

Page 1, line 22, remove the overstrike over "~~After a legislator's service in the legislative assembly is~~"

Page 2, line 1, remove the overstrike over "~~terminated, the secretary of state shall inform the legislator~~" and insert immediately thereafter "that the legislator may elect to retain the set of the code or to return the set at the expense of the secretary of state. If the legislator elects to retain the set, the secretary of state shall inform the legislator" and remove the overstrike over "~~how to obtain~~"

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 2

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1241: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1241 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 3, replace the first "and" with a comma and after "veterans" insert ", civic, and service"

Page 1, line 20, replace "As used in this section," with "A" and replace "means" with "is"

Page 1, line 21, replace "or" with an underscored comma, after "veterans" insert ", or civic and service", remove "at", and remove "wagers"

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 29 with "is not licensed by the attorney general. An organization may conduct no more than two charity night events in a calendar year to raise funds exclusively for a special educational, charitable, patriotic, fraternal, religious, or other public-spirited use."

2. An organization shall apply to the governing body of the city or county in which the site where the charity night event to be conducted is located. Application for a charity night permit must be made on a form prescribed by the attorney general. Approval may be granted at the discretion of the governing body which may establish a fee not to exceed fifty dollars for the permit.
3. Only a qualified regular or auxiliary member of an organization may operate a charity night event and the member may not receive any remuneration for time or effort devoted to the event.
4. Games referenced in section 53-06.1-07 may be conducted. A wager must be made with chips or imitation money. The normal game bet and prize limits of this chapter apply. An organization may permit a player to redeem chips or imitation money for merchandise prizes, gifts, certificates, or cash.
5. An organization shall use the attorney general's recordkeeping system to fully account for a charity night event and file a report with the governing body and attorney general."

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 20

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1257: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1257 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 7, remove the second "and"

Page 1, line 8, after "date" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 17, remove "later"

Page 1, line 18, after "well" insert "after March 31, 1995"

Page 2, line 8, remove the overstrike over "fifteen" and remove "twenty"

Page 3, line 17, after the second "well" insert "after March 31, 1995,"

Page 3, line 28, replace "This" with "Sections 1, 3, and 4 of this Act are effective for taxable events occurring after March 31, 1995, and section 2 of this"

Page 3, after line 29, insert:

"SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Re-number accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1284: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1284 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 5, after line 11, insert:

"3. An agency may amend or repeal a rule or create a related rule if, after consideration of rules by the committee on administrative rules, the agency and committee agree that the rule amendment, repeal, or creation is necessary to address any of the considerations under subsection 1. A rule amended, repealed, or created under this subsection is not subject to the other requirements of this chapter relating to adoption of administrative rules and may be resubmitted by the agency to the legislative council for publication as amended, repealed, or created and reconsidered by the committee on administrative rules at a subsequent meeting."

Page 7, after line 17, insert:

"3. An agency may amend or repeal a rule or create a related rule if, after consideration of rules by the committee on administrative rules, the agency and committee agree that the rule amendment, repeal, or creation is necessary to address any of the considerations under subsection 1. A rule amended, repealed, or created under this subsection is not subject to the other requirements of this chapter relating to adoption of administrative rules and may be resubmitted by the agency to the legislative council for publication as amended, repealed, or created and reconsidered by the committee on administrative rules at a subsequent meeting."

Re-number accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1290: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1290 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 13, replace "president of the senate" with "legislative council" and replace "one member" with "two members"

Page 1, line 14, replace "senate" with "legislative assembly", replace "speaker" with "members appointed by the legislative council must represent each of the two major political factions and both houses", and replace "house of" with "legislative assembly"

Page 1, remove line 15

Page 1, line 16, remove "odd-numbered year"

Page 1, line 20, after "The" insert "mental health consumer advocates of" and replace "special education study council" with ", inc.,"

Page 1, line 21, after the underscored period insert "The members appointed by the North Dakota association for retarded citizens, the mental health association, or the mental health consumer advocates of North Dakota, inc., must include individuals with developmental disabilities who are eligible for services or parents, family members, guardians, advocates, or authorized representatives of individuals with developmental disabilities who are eligible for services."

Page 2, line 3, after "term" insert ", but if the federal government designates a member ineligible, the legislative council shall fill the vacancy for the unexpired term in a manner that is consistent with federal eligibility requirements"

ReNUMBER accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1291: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1291 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 3, after "state" insert "individual, estate, and trust"

Page 1, line 9, after the second comma insert "and" and overstrike ", and"

Page 1, line 10, overstrike "corporations"

Page 1, line 11, after the second comma insert "or"

Page 1, line 12, overstrike ", or corporation"

Page 1, line 15, after the period insert ""Taxable income" in the case of a corporation means the taxable income as computed for the corporation for federal income tax purposes under the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, plus or minus such adjustments as may be provided by law."

ReNUMBER accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1305: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1305 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 4, remove "61-32-08," and remove "61-32-10,"

Page 1, line 11, remove the overstrike over "~~has a watershed~~"

Page 1, line 12, remove "drains an"

Page 2, line 18, remove the overstrike over "~~has a watershed~~" and remove "drains an"

Page 4, line 11, remove "61-32-08," and remove "61-32-10,"

Renumber accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1306, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1306 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.**

Page 2, line 3, replace "adjusted gross" with "taxable"

Page 2, line 25, after "tax" insert "not exceeding a rate of one percent"

Page 2, line 26, replace "adjusted gross" with "taxable"

Page 2, line 28, replace "adjusted gross" with "taxable"

Page 3, line 1, replace "adjusted gross" with "taxable"

Page 3, line 20, replace "adjusted gross" with "taxable"

Page 3, line 26, replace "adjusted gross" with "taxable"

Page 4, line 2, after "year" insert "but may not exceed a rate of one percent of taxable income of taxpayers within the district"

Renumber accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1320: Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Olson, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (8 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1320 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.**

Page 1, line 2, remove "and"

Page 1, line 3, remove "outfitters"

Page 1, line 7, remove "and outfitters"

Page 1, line 8, remove "or outfitter"

Renumber accordingly

**REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE**

**HB 1334: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1334 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.**

Page 1, line 1, replace "police" with "certified, law enforcement support"

Page 1, line 4, replace "police" with "certified, law enforcement support"

Page 1, line 5, after "misdemeanor" insert "and is subject to a civil penalty up to ten thousand dollars" and after "willfully" insert "and unjustifiably"

Page 1, line 7, replace the first "police" with "certified, law enforcement support" and replace the second "police" with "certified, law enforcement support"

Page 1, line 11, replace "police" with "certified, law enforcement support"

Re-number accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1344:** Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1344 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 10, after the period insert "The electors of a township may choose to divide the revenues from the levy under this section between airports and airport authorities and may designate the manner of division of the revenues from the levy among the airports and airport authorities." and after "The" insert "division of the"

Page 1, line 11, overstrike "provided in" and insert immediately thereafter "under" and overstrike "to any city, park district, or other"

Page 1, line 12, overstrike "taxing district that" and insert immediately thereafter "if the township is", overstrike "has" and insert immediately thereafter "within an established taxing district for", and remove "The electors of a township"

Page 1, remove lines 13 through 15

Re-number accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1345:** Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1345 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 4, replace "to" with "may"

Page 1, line 5, replace "secretary of state" with "county auditor"

Page 1, line 6, replace "shall" with "may"

Page 1, line 8, remove "primary election" and replace "in 1996. The county auditor in each county in" with "at any countywide election. The board of county commissioners of a county shall place the question of whether the county should be in the central time zone on the ballot at the next countywide election upon receipt of a petition containing the names of qualified electors of the county equal to twenty percent of the votes cast for the office of governor at the last general election"

Page 1, remove lines 9 through 11

Page 1, line 12, remove "question"

Page 1, line 13, replace "secretary of state" with "county auditor"

Page 1, line 14, replace "area" with "county"

Re-number accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1355: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1355 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-03, section 53-06.1-06, and subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to licensure of eligible organizations and allowable expenses for games of chance.

## BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-03 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. The attorney general shall license eligible organizations that conform to the requirements of this chapter ~~by issuing licenses as follows:~~
  - a. ~~A class A license to an eligible organization that is a fraternal, veterans, or civic and service organization.~~
  - b. ~~A class B license to an eligible organization that is a charitable, religious, educational, public spirited, or public safety organization. The attorney general may deny a class B license to an otherwise eligible organization if the organization is connected, directly or indirectly, to the holder of a North Dakota retail alcoholic beverage license. An eligible organization that qualifies for a class A license may not also be issued a class B license.~~
  - c. ~~The commission may establish by rule no more than two additional classes of licenses based on the frequency of gaming, the types of games of chance conducted by the licensed organization, and the adjusted gross proceeds collected or expected to be collected by the licensed organization.~~

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 53-06.1-06 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

53-06.1-06. Persons permitted to conduct games of chance - Gaming site - Equipment - Compensation.

1. No person, except a member or employee of a licensed organization or an organization that has been issued a local permit or a member of an organization auxiliary to a licensed organization or an organization that has been issued a local permit, may assist in the holding, operating, or conducting of any game of chance under this chapter. In the conduct of pull tabs through an electronic-mechanical dispensing device, the attorney general may allow employees of licensed alcoholic beverage establishments to provide limited assistance to ~~a class B licensed organization whose adjusted gross proceeds does not exceed eighty thousand dollars per quarterly reporting period of operation or to any class A licensed organization organizations.~~ However, a volunteer of an eligible organization may sell raffle tickets.
2. Except when authorized by the attorney general, no games of chance may be conducted with any gaming equipment other than

gaming equipment owned by an eligible organization or rented at a reasonable rate by an eligible organization from a licensed distributor.

3. The governing board of an eligible organization is primarily responsible and may be held accountable for the proper determination and distribution of the net proceeds of games of chance.
4. The gaming site where any game of chance is being held, operated, or conducted, or where it is intended that the game will be held, must be open to inspection by the attorney general and by law enforcement officials of this state.
5. When any merchandise prize is awarded in a game of chance, its value is its current retail price.
6. Equipment, prizes, and supplies for games of chance may not be purchased or sold at prices in excess of the usual price thereof.
7. ~~A class A organization must devote the entire net proceeds derived from conducting games of chance within three months from the end of the quarter in which such proceeds were earned to eligible uses. A class A organization desiring to hold the net proceeds for a period longer than three months shall apply to the attorney general for special permission, and upon good cause shown, the attorney general may grant the request.~~
- 8- No person who has pled guilty to or been found guilty of a felony may sell or distribute equipment, or conduct or assist in games of chance under this chapter for five years from the date of the conviction or release from incarceration, parole, or probation, whichever is the latter. No person determined by the attorney general to have participated in organized crime or unlawful gambling, may be permitted to sell or distribute equipment, or conduct or assist in games of chance under this chapter for a period determined by the attorney general.
- 9- 8. Any person involved with the conduct of games of chance must be:
  - a. A person of good character, honesty, and integrity.
  - b. A person whose prior activities, criminal record, reputation, habits, and associations do not pose a threat to the public interest of this state or to the effective regulation and control of gaming, or create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair, or illegal practices, methods, and activities in the conduct of gaming or the carrying on of the business and financial arrangements incidental to the conduct of gaming.
- 10- 9. The attorney general or commission may prohibit a person from playing games of chance if the person violates this chapter or any rule adopted under this chapter.
- 11- 10. The attorney general or commission may require a licensed organization to pay a bingo or raffle prize to a player based on a factual determination, after opportunity for the parties to be heard, by the attorney general or commission.

- ~~12-~~ 11. If bingo is the primary game of chance conducted at an authorized site, no licensed organization may pay bingo prizes in which the aggregate of the bingo prizes for a quarter exceeds the total bingo gross proceeds for the quarter at that site. However, a bingo prize that equals or exceeds ten thousand dollars is excluded from the computation of the aggregate of the bingo prizes.

**SECTION 3. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-11 of the 1993 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. Subject to the limitations of this subsection, expenses incurred for games of chance may be deducted from adjusted gross proceeds, to the extent that total expenses for games of chance do not exceed fifty percent of the first two hundred thousand dollars of adjusted gross proceeds per quarter and forty-five percent of the adjusted gross proceeds in excess of two hundred thousand dollars per quarter. ~~However, for an authorized site at which the game pull tabs is the only game of chance conducted and the conduct of pull tabs is through an electronic mechanical dispensing device, expenses incurred for this game of chance may be deducted from adjusted gross proceeds, based on the average adjusted gross proceeds of all of an organization's authorized sites at which the game of pull tabs is conducted through electronic mechanical dispensing devices, according to the following:~~

- ~~a. On average adjusted gross proceeds not exceeding eight thousand dollars per quarter, an expense limitation of fifty percent.~~
- ~~b. On average adjusted gross proceeds exceeding eight thousand dollars per quarter, but not exceeding twelve thousand dollars per quarter, an expense limitation of forty five percent.~~
- ~~c. On average adjusted gross proceeds exceeding twelve thousand dollars per quarter, but not exceeding sixteen thousand dollars per quarter, an expense limitation of forty percent.~~
- ~~d. On average adjusted gross proceeds exceeding sixteen thousand dollars per quarter, an expense limitation of thirty five percent.~~

Cash shorts incurred in games of chance are classified as expenses toward the expense limitation. Notwithstanding the limitations of this subsection, in addition to the expenses allowed to be deducted from adjusted gross proceeds, a licensed organization may deduct as an expense capital expenditures for security or video surveillance equipment used for controlling games of chance if the equipment is required by section 53-06.1-10 or rules adopted by the commission and the equipment is approved by the attorney general. The figure used for adjusted gross proceeds is as determined in subsection 1 of section 53-06.1-01 before any reduction for taxes. This subsection does not authorize violations of the rent limitations contained in this chapter."

ReNUMBER accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1360: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1360 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 11, after "for" insert "up to"

Page 1, line 15, remove "A resolution adopted by the governing body of the city or county"

Page 1, line 16, remove "under this section may be rescinded or amended at any time."

Page 1, line 19, after "allowed" insert ". A resolution adopted by the governing body of the city or county under this section may be rescinded or amended at any time"

Page 2, line 4, remove the overstrike over "~~assessor~~" and remove "governing body of the city or county"

Page 2, line 7, remove the overstrike over "~~The assessor shall determine whether the~~"

Page 2, line 8, remove the overstrike over "~~improvements qualify for the exemption~~" and insert immediately thereafter "based on the resolution of the governing body of the city or county", remove the overstrike over "~~, and if~~", after "he" insert "the assessor", and remove the overstrike over "~~determines that the~~"

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 9

Page 2, line 10, after "be" insert "is", remove the overstrike over "~~valid~~", and remove the overstrike over "~~and shall not terminate upon the~~"

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 11

Page 2, line 12, remove the overstrike over "~~owners for~~", after "~~three year~~" insert "the prescribed", and remove the overstrike over "~~period. If the certificate is not filed as herein~~"

Page 2, remove the overstrike over line 13

Page 2, line 14, remove the overstrike over "~~assess them as such.~~"

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1369: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Berg, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1369 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 6, line 1, replace "Any federal statute" with "Federal statutes"

Page 6, line 3, replace "Any administrative regulation" with "Administrative regulations"

Page 6, line 4, replace the second "was" with "were"

Page 6, line 8, replace "Any premarket" with "Premarket"

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1378: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (20 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1378 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1391: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1391 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace "49" with "39"

Page 1, line 5, replace "49" with "39"

Page 1, line 7, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 1, line 8, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 1, line 9, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 1, line 13, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 1, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 2, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 4, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 6, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 9, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 13, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 15, replace "commission" with "department"

Page 2, line 17, replace "commission" with "department"

Re-number accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1392: Transportation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1392 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace "49" with "39"

Page 1, line 6, replace "49" with "39"

Page 1, line 8, replace "Definitions" with "Common carrier defined" and replace the colon with a comma

Page 1, line 9, replace "1. "Common" with "common"

Page 1, remove lines 13 through 22

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 4

Page 2, line 5, replace "interstate" with "intrastate"

Page 2, line 6, replace "interstate" with "intrastate"

Page 2, line 7, after "States" insert "and this state"

Page 2, line 27, remove "or contract"

Page 3, remove lines 8 through 14

Page 3, line 15, replace "4" with "1"

Page 3, line 17, replace "5" with "2"

Page 3, line 18, replace "6" with "3"

Page 3, line 21, remove "subject to department approval"

Page 3, remove lines 24 through 28

Page 4, line 8, remove "Upon receipt of an application and when there is an immediate and"

Page 4, remove lines 9 through 18

Page 4, remove line 26

Page 4, line 27, replace "b" with "a"

Page 5, line 1, replace "c" with "b"

Page 5, line 4, replace "d" with "c" and after the semicolon insert "and"

Page 5, remove line 5

Page 5, line 6, replace "f" with "d"

Page 5, remove lines 20 through 29

Page 6, remove lines 1 and 2

Page 6, line 4, after "by" insert "a" and remove "or contract"

Page 6, line 5, after "reasonable" insert ", uniform for similar service,"

Page 6, line 6, after the period insert "The use of a tariff bureau to promulgate and file a proposed tariff creates no presumption that the carrier using the bureau is violating the Constitution of North Dakota."

Page 6, line 8, remove "without household and passenger carrier approval"

Page 6, remove lines 10 through 29

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 14

Page 7, line 19, replace "; provided, however, that when there is an immediate" with a period

Page 7, remove lines 20 through 25

Page 7, line 26, remove "common or contract"

Page 8, line 1, replace "two" with "one"

Page 8, remove lines 8 through 12

Page 8, line 26, remove "- Appointment of additional highway patrolmen"

Page 9, line 4, remove "The superintendent of the"

Page 9, remove lines 5 and 6

Page 9, line 10, replace "2225" with "2258"

Page 9, line 11, replace "2225" with "2258"

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1402: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman)** recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1402 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 8, line 6, remove the overstrike over "~~prepayments or~~" and remove the overstrike over "~~which total three thousand~~"

Page 8, line 7, remove the overstrike over "~~dollars or less, and the interest accrued thereon, made~~"

Page 8, line 8, after "~~contract~~" insert "and maintained" and remove the overstrike over "~~by an applicant for or recipient of medical~~"

Page 8, line 9, remove the overstrike over the first "~~assistance~~" and replace "~~that fund pre-need funeral service contracts~~" with ", in a fund, not commingled with any other funds, designated by the applicant or recipient as set aside to pay for the applicant's or recipient's funeral"

Page 8, line 13, overstrike "deposits on"

Page 8, line 14, overstrike "pre-need funeral service contracts" and insert immediately thereafter "funds maintained in accordance with this section"

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1416: Judiciary Committee (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman)** recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1416 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 12, remove the overstrike over "~~speaker~~" and remove "majority"

Page 1, line 13, remove "leader"

Page 1, line 15, replace "minority leader" with "speaker"

Page 1, line 19, remove the overstrike over "~~lieutenant governor~~" and remove "majority leader of the"

Page 1, line 20, remove "senate"

Page 1, line 22, overstrike "~~the minority leader~~" and remove "of"

Page 2, line 1, remove "the senate shall appoint to the council"

Page 2, line 2, replace "majority" with "speaker of the house and the lieutenant governor"

Page 2, line 3, remove "and minority leaders of each house"

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1418: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Soukup, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1418 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace "sections 11-11.1-04," with "section"

Page 1, line 6, after the third comma insert "and" and remove ", and 29"

Page 1, remove lines 9 through 21

Page 2, remove lines 1 and 2

Page 7, line 18, after the third comma insert "and" and remove ", and 29"

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1426: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1426 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 13, after "who" insert "to administer the department of public instruction. The superintendent" and remove the overstrike over "~~must have~~"

Page 1, line 14, remove the overstrike over "~~attained the age of twenty five years,~~" and remove the overstrike over "~~must have the qualification of an~~"

Page 1, line 15, remove the overstrike over "~~elector for that office, and~~" and remove the overstrike over "~~must be a holder of a teacher's~~"

Page 1, line 16, remove the overstrike over "~~certificate of the highest grade issued in this state.~~"

Page 1, line 17, remove "to"

Page 1, line 18, remove "administer the department of public instruction" and overstrike the period

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1461: Human Services Committee (Rep. Svedjan, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1461 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 22, after "thereof" insert ", except a county social service board,"

Page 2, line 14, overstrike "These" and insert immediately thereafter "Therapeutic"

Page 2, line 15, after the period, insert "This chapter does not prohibit a person licensed under title 43 or another law from carrying out the therapy or practice for which the person is licensed."

Page 3, line 14, replace "Medical social" with "Personal care" and after "services" insert "not included under chapters 43-11 and 43-25"

Page 3, line 16, replace "other" with "therapeutic" and after "services" insert "which are exempted from licensure under this chapter for two years after the effective date of this Act"

Page 3, line 24, overstrike "therapy" and insert immediately thereafter "care, which is exempted from licensure under this chapter for two years after the effective date of this Act"

Page 3, remove lines 25 and 26

Page 3, line 27, replace "g" with "f" and replace "provision" with "administration"

Page 6, line 19, after "that" insert "personnel providing" and overstrike "aides" and insert immediately thereafter "and personal care services"

Page 6, line 20, overstrike "adequate supervision" and insert immediately thereafter "chapter 43-12.1"

Page 6, line 24, replace "care provider" with "health agency"

Page 6, line 27, replace "care provider" with "health agency"

Re-number accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1465: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman)** recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO NOT PASS (13 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1465 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 6, replace "or created by executive order of the governor" with "and which does not have an office established in Bismarck" and remove "official"

Page 1, line 7, remove "records of the entity, including" and replace "financial records," with "audit reports"

Page 1, line 8, after the period insert "An entity required under this section to deposit its records with the secretary of state shall deposit minutes of any meeting with the secretary of state within sixty days after the date of the meeting and deposit any audit report of the entity with the secretary of state within sixty days after receiving the report."

Page 1, line 9, replace "permanently and the" with "until the records are subject to final disposition or transferred to the state archivist under chapter 54-46. The"

Page 1, line 10, after "to" insert "records of elected state officials or to"

Re-number accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1468: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Timm, Chairman)** recommends DO NOT PASS (11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1468 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1479: Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Olson, Chairman)** recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends BE PLACED ON THE CALENDAR WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION (7 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1479 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 6, replace "thirty" with "eighty" and remove "five"

Page 1, line 7, remove "hundred" and replace "118,387.6" with "163293.24" and after "of" insert "municipal"

Page 1, line 8, replace "five" with "six" and replace "453,592.37" with "544310.84"

Page 1, line 9, after "of" insert "municipal" and after the period insert "This section does not apply to a solid waste landfill permitted for an energy conversion facility as defined in section 49-22-03 which accepts only special waste as defined in section 23-29-03."

Page 1, line 12, after "of" insert "municipal"

Page 1, line 13, after "of" insert "municipal"

Page 1, line 15, after "of" insert "municipal"

Page 1, line 18, after "involving" insert "municipal"

Page 1, line 19, after the period insert "The committee's duties and authority under this subsection do not apply to solid waste landfills permitted for energy conversion facilities as defined in section 49-22-03 which accept only special waste as defined in section 23-29-03."

Renumber accordingly

#### REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1496: Education Committee (Rep. Rydell, Chairman)** recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (8 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1496 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 7, replace "On or before October fifteenth of each" with "Each" and remove the comma

Page 1, line 10, replace "governor and" with "department of public instruction"

Page 1, remove line 11

Page 1, line 12, remove "publication"

Page 1, remove lines 13 through 22

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 8

Page 2, line 9, replace "3. Prior to September first of each" with "2. Each", remove the comma, and replace "may" with "shall"

Page 2, line 10, after "to" insert "establish and"

Page 2, line 11, after "make" insert "any"

Page 2, line 12, remove ", other than those provided in subsection 2"

Page 2, after line 24, insert:

"g. The superintendent of public instruction or a designee of the superintendent."

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1501: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Wardner, Chairman)** recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1501 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 5, line 13, replace "A nonprobationary employee contesting the employment" with "The moving party in the initial"

Renumber accordingly

## REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

**HB 1502: Agriculture Committee (Rep. Nicholas, Chairman)** recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1502 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 3, remove "; and to repeal chapter 4-16 and section 63-01.1-04.2 of the North"

Page 1, remove line 4

Page 1, line 5, remove "crows, and to pest control by county weed boards"

Page 1, remove lines 12 through 14

Renumber accordingly

## MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM C. PARKER, SECRETARY)

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2001, SB 2137, SB 2151, SB 2175, SB 2178, SB 2205, SB 2209, SB 2212, SB 2288, SB 2292, SB 2327, SB 2355, SB 2357, SB 2402, SB 2442, SB 2459, SB 2461, SB 2472, SB 2489, SB 2490, SB 2500.

## FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

**SB 2001:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the governor; and to amend and reenact sections 54-07-04 and 54-08-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the salaries of the governor and lieutenant governor.  
Was read the first time and referred to the **Appropriations Committee**.

**SB 2137:** A BILL for an Act to authorize the North Dakota mill and elevator association to convey certain state-owned land to the department of transportation.  
Was read the first time and referred to the **Agriculture Committee**.

**SB 2151:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 4-34-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to beef promotion; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 4-34-01, sections 4-34-02, 4-34-03, 4-34-04, and 4-34-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota beef commission.  
Was read the first time and referred to the **Agriculture Committee**.

**SB 2175:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compliance of the uniform group insurance program with federal requirements and group purchasing arrangements.  
Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

**SB 2178:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 26.1-01-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to transfer of the cash balance in the insurance regulatory trust fund to the general fund.  
Was read the first time and referred to the **Appropriations Committee**.

**SB 2205:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 55-03-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to cultural resource investigation permits.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee.**

**SB 2209:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-27.1, section 15-27.4-02.1, and a new section to chapter 15-40.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to school district levies after annexation or dissolution, unobligated cash balance in a dissolution, and open enrollment exemptions; and to amend and reenact section 15-27.1-11, subsection 2 of section 15-27.2-01, sections 15-27.2-04, 15-27.3-01.1, 15-27.3-02, 15-27.3-05, 15-27.3-06, 15-27.3-14, 15-27.4-01, subsection 3 of section 15-27.4-02, sections 15-27.4-03, 15-40.1-07.3, subsection 2 of section 15-40.2-01, and subsection 1 of section 15-40.2-04, relating to school district annexation, reorganization, and dissolution and payment of tuition and open enrollment.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Education Committee.**

**SB 2212:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 22 of section 43-15-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of practice of pharmacy.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee.**

**SB 2288:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 54-16.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to approval of transfer authority or expanded expenditure authorization by the budget section of the legislative council; to repeal chapter 54-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the emergency commission; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Appropriations Committee.**

**SB 2292:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 26.1-36-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to group health policy and health service contract mental disorder coverage.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee.**

**SB 2327:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 20.1-03-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to nonresident waterfowl hunting licenses.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Natural Resources Committee.**

**SB 2355:** A BILL for an Act to authorize the state board of higher education to convey certain land to BHS Long Term Care, Inc.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee.**

**SB 2357:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-19-19 and 11-19.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to acting coroners and appointment of assistant coroners.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee.**

**SB 2402:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 44-08-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to preference to North Dakota resident bidders.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee.**

**SB 2442:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 21-03-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to notice of the issuance of bonds by municipalities for highway projects.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee.**

**SB 2459:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 39-05-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to entry of name of purchaser on motor vehicle title documents; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

**SB 2461:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-24.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to remedies to ensure prompt compliance by nursing facilities with requirements of the medical assistance program.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

**SB 2472:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-13-12 and 11-13-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to auditor's certificates on real property conveyance documents; and to repeal section 11-13-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to real property records required to be kept by county auditors.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee**.

**SB 2489:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 25-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to depreciation recapture from treatment or care centers for the developmentally disabled.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

**SB 2490:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 14-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to paternity; to amend and reenact section 14-18-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the establishment of paternity; to repeal section 14-18-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the establishment of maternity; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee**.

**SB 2500:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 35-01-27 and 35-03-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to satisfaction and discharge of mortgages on real property.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Freier's motion.

**ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk**